
 

 

NOTICE AND AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 

Wednesday, February 9, 2022, 1:30 PM 
 *** BY TELECONFERENCE ONLY ***  

 

As permitted by Government Code section 54953(e), this meeting will be held by Zoom and teleconference. No physical 
location will be available for this meeting.   
 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS AND PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/89394604053?pwd=YW9JOFNjdndPeENJNXowbi93RU5Hdz09 

Passcode: 228366 
 

Or join by telephone: 

Dial: USA 888-278-0254 US Toll-free 

Conference code: 220394 
 

LAFCO meetings are audio recorded and posted online at http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/. Audio 
recordings are available the day following the LAFCO meeting. LAFCO meeting materials and staff reports are available online 
at http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: The Commission will consider all verbal and written comments received.  Comments may be emailed 
to LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us or by U.S. mail to Contra Costa LAFCO at 40 Muir Road 1st Floor, Martinez, CA  
94553. Please indicate the agenda item number, if any. If you want your comments read into the record, please indicate so in 
the subject line. For public hearings, the Chair will announce the opening and closing of the public hearing. The Chair will call 
for verbal public comments.  

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Disclosable public records for a regular meeting agenda distributed to a majority of the members of the Commission less than 
72 hours prior to that meeting will be made available on http://contracostalafco.org/meetings 
 

Campaign Contribution Disclosure 
If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on a matter to be heard by the Commission, and if you have made campaign 
contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past 12 months, Government Code Section 84308 requires 
that you disclose the fact, either orally or in writing, for the official record of the proceedings. 
   

Notice of Intent to Waive Protest Proceedings 
In the case of a change of organization consisting of an annexation or detachment, or a reorganization consisting solely of 
annexations or detachments, or both, or the formation of a county service area, it is the intent of the Commission to waive 
subsequent protest and election proceedings provided that appropriate mailed notice has been given to landowners and registered 
voters within the affected territory pursuant to Gov. Code sections 56157 and 56663, and no written  opposition from affected 
landowner or voters to the proposal is received before the conclusion of the commission proceedings on the proposal. 
 

American Disabilities Act Compliance 
LAFCO will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to join the meeting. Please contact the 
LAFCO office at least 48 hours before the meeting at 925-313-7133.   

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcccounty-us.zoom.us%2Fj%2F89394604053%3Fpwd%3DYW9JOFNjdndPeENJNXowbi93RU5Hdz09&data=04%7C01%7CLouAnn.Texeira%40lafco.cccounty.us%7Cb5655ac53c044842a36b08d9e526cfd4%7C76c13a07612f4e06a2f4783d69dc4cdb%7C0%7C0%7C637792777127083300%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=PFXXT0Xdyf%2FD5b7vSMPa2nJayfDSGrhcMiwknq8A6ME%3D&reserved=0
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/
mailto:LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings


 

 

FEBRUARY 9, 2022 CONTRA COSTA LAFCO AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Adoption of Agenda 

4.        Selection of 2022 Chair and Vice Chair and Recognition of Outgoing Chair  

5. Approval of Minutes for the November 10, 2021 regular LAFCO meeting  

6. Public Comment Period (please observe a three-minute time limit): 

Members of the public are invited to address the Commission regarding any item that is not scheduled for discussion 

as part of this Agenda. No action will be taken by the Commission at this meeting as a result of items presented at 

this time. 

7. Special Recognition – Pamela Miller, Executive Director, CALAFCO 
 

TELECONFERENCING  

8. Assembly Bill 361 – consider adopting a resolution authorizing LAFCO to conduct teleconference meetings under 

Government Code section 54953(e) and making related findings  
 

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENTS/CHANGES OF ORGANIZATION 

9. Dissolution of County Service Area (CSA) R-10 – consider approving dissolution of CSA R-10 which comprises 7.37+ 

square miles and serves unincorporated Rodeo; and consider a categorical exemption under the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Public Hearing 

10. LAFCO 21-10 - Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (CCCFPD) Sphere of Influence (SOI) Expansion - 

consider expanding CCCFPD’s SOI to include the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District (249+ square miles); and 

consider a categorical exemption under CEQA Public Hearing 

11. LAFCO 21-11 – Annexation of East Contra Costa Fire Protection District (ECCFPD) to Contra Costa County Fire 

Protection District (CCCFPD) and Dissolution of ECCFPD- consider approving annexation of ECCFPD (249+ square 

miles)  to CCCFPD and dissolution of ECCFPD; and consider related action per CEQA Public Hearing 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

12. Proposed Update to Contra Costa LAFCO’s Legislative Platform – review and approve minor revisions to the Contra 

Costa LAFCO Legislative Platform consistent with the CALAFCO 2021 Legislative Policies 

13. FY 2022-23 Budget Schedule and Work Plan - provide input on FY 2022-23 proposed budget schedule and work plan  

14. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Mid-Year Budget Report – receive FY 2021-22 mid-year budget report 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

15. Pending Applications - receive an update on pending proposals – information only 

16. Correspondence from Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) 

17. Commissioner Comments and Announcements  

18. Staff Announcements/CALAFCO Updates/Newspaper Articles 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

Title: Executive Officer 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Commissioners Skaredoff and Schroder 

Unrepresented employee: Executive Officer 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

     Next regular LAFCO meeting March 9, 2022 at 1:30 pm.  

     LAFCO STAFF REPORTS AVAILABLE AT http://www.contracostalafco.org/meeting_archive.htm 

http://www.contracostalafco.org/meeting_archive.htm


 

February 9, 2022 (Agenda)  
 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission  

40 Muir Road, First Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 

 

Selection of Commission Officers for 2022 

 

Dear Members of the Commission: 
  

The procedure for selecting officers for the Contra Costa LAFCO is described in Section 1.4 (Rules 
and Procedures) of the Commission Handbook and provides for the following:  
  
• The members of the Commission shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair at the first meeting of the 

Commission held in January of each year or as soon thereafter as practicable.   
• The Chair and Vice Chair shall serve for one-year terms, or until their successors are elected, 

whichever occurs later.   
• Officers shall be selected from the categories of members in the following order:   
 

County member 1 

Special District member 1  

City member 1  

Public member 

County member 2  

Special District member 2  
City member 2 

 

In 2021, Special District member Skaredoff served as Chair and City member Rob Schroder served as 
Vice Chair.  
 
RECOMMENDATION – Per the Commission’s policy, it is recommended that the Commission 
select a City member as Chair and a County member as Vice Chair to serve until January 2023. 
  

Sincerely, 
 
 
LOU ANN TEXEIRA 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

February 9, 2022 

Agenda Item 4 

Lou Ann Texeira 
Executive Officer 

CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor • Martinez, CA 94553 

e-mail: LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us 
(925) 313-7133 

MEMBERS 
Candace Andersen 

County Member 

Donald A. Blubaugh 
Public Member 

Tom Butt 
City Member 

Federal Glover 
County Member 

Michael R. McGill 
Special District Member 

Rob Schroder 
City Member 

Igor Skaredoff 
Special District Member 

ALTERNATE MEMBERS 
Diane Burgis 

County Member 

Stanley Caldwell 
Special District Member 

Charles R. Lewis, IV 
Public Member 

Edi Birsan 
City Member 



 

February 9, 2022 

Agenda Item 5 

CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

November 10, 2021 

 

1. Welcome and Call to Order; Roll Call (Agenda Items 1&2) 

Chair Skaredoff called the regular meeting of November 10, 2021, to order at 1:32 p.m. 

The following Commissioners and staff were present: 

 

Commissioner Andersen and her Chief of Staff Gayle Israel were thanked by Chair Skaredoff on behalf 

of the entire Commission for hosting the Commission Meetings via Zoom during the pandemic. 

 

 

Announcement: Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order and local county health orders issued to 

address the COVID 19 pandemic, the Commission meeting is being held via Zoom videoconference. The public 

may listen to the meeting telephonically and comment by calling in to the teleconference meeting per the 

instructions on page 1 of the agenda. As required by the Brown Act, all votes taken this afternoon will be done 

by a roll call vote of the attending Commissioners participating via teleconference. 

 

3. Adoption of Agenda 

Upon motion by Commissioner McGill and second by Commissioner Glover, the Commission 

unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, adopted the agenda 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, Lewis, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT:  Blubaugh  

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

4. Approval of Minutes 

Upon motion by Commissioner Glover and second by Commissioner Schroder, the Commission 

unanimously, by a 7-0 vote approved the September 8, 2021, meeting minutes 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, Lewis, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: Blubaugh 

ABSTAIN: NONE     

 

5. Public Comments 

Chair Skaredoff invited members of the audience to provide public comment. There were no speakers. 

 

 

 

Regular Commissioners Alternate Commissioners Staff  

Igor Skaredoff, Chair  

Rob Schroder, Vice Chair 

Candace Andersen 

Tom Butt 

Mike McGill 

Federal Glover 

Don Blubaugh (absent) 

Stan Caldwell  

Chuck Lewis (seated for Blubaugh) 

Diane Burgis (absent) 

Edi Birsan (absent)  

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer 

Tom Geiger, Commission Counsel 

Sherrie Weis, LAFCO Clerk  



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County 

Draft Meeting Minutes of November 10, 2021   Page 2 

 

 

 

TELECONFERENCING 

 

6. Assembly Bill 361 – consider adopting a resolution authorizing LAFCO to conduct teleconference 

meetings under Government Code section 54953(e) and making related findings  

 

Following Commissioner comments and upon a motion by Commissioner McGill and second by 

Commissioner Glover, the Commission, unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, approved to adopt Resolution No. 

2021-01 allowing Contra Costa LAFCO to conduct teleconference meetings pursuant to GC section 

54953(e) and make related findings 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, Lewis, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: Blubaugh 

ABSTAIN: NONE     

 

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENTS/CHANGES OF ORGANIZATION 

 

7. County Service Area (CSAs) R-9 and R-10 – consider initiating dissolution of CSA R-9 which 

comprises 3.1+ square miles and serves unincorporated El Sobrante Valley including parts of Richmond, 

and dissolution of CSA R-10 which comprises 7.37+ square miles and serves unincorporated Rodeo 

 

Following comments from Public Works staff Rochelle Johnson and Carl Roner, comments and 

questions by the Commissioners and upon a motion by Commissioner Glover and second by 

Commissioner Schroder, unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, approved Option 1 - defer adopting a resolution 

initiating dissolution of CSA R-9 and request an update within 6-9 months regarding the status of CSA 

R-9 including future funding options; 2) adopt a resolution initiating dissolution of CSA R-10; and direct 

staff to proceed with dissolution proceedings to be considered by the Commission at a future meeting. 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, Lewis, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: Blubaugh 

ABSTAIN: NONE     

 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

8. Request to Transfer Jurisdiction from Alameda LAFCO to Contra Costa LAFCO - consider assuming 

jurisdiction and authorizing staff to send a request to Alameda LAFCO to transfer jurisdiction in order 

to consider a proposed sphere of influence amendment and corresponding annexation to the East Bay 

Municipal Utility District. The subject property is located at 285 Lark Lane in unincorporated Alamo 

  

Following Commissioner comments, and upon a motion by Commissioner McGill and second by 

Commissioner Glover, the Commission, unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, recommended that Contra Costa 

LAFCO agree to assume exclusive jurisdiction for these proposals and authorize LAFCO staff to send 

a letter to Alameda LAFCO requesting a transfer of jurisdiction in conjunction with these proposals. 

 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County 

Draft Meeting Minutes of November 10, 2021   Page 3 

 

 

 

       VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, Lewis, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: Blubaugh 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

9. FY 2021-22 First Quarter Budget Report – receive FY 2021-22 first quarter budget report 

 

Upon motion of Commissioner Butt and second by Commissioner Schroder, the Commission 

unanimously approved, by a 7-0 vote, to receive the FY 2021-22 first quarter budget report  

 

 VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, Lewis, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: Blubaugh  

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

10. 2021-22 Legislative Update – a legislative update will be provided – information only 

 

 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 

11. Pending Applications – receive an update on pending proposals –informational update – no action 

required by the Commission. 

 

12. Correspondence from Contra Costa County Employee’s Retirement Association (CCCERA) 
 

13. Commissioner Comments and Announcements 
 Commissioner McGill updated the Commission on CALAFCO’s activities: 

➢ September 10, 2021 CALAFCO Legislative Committee Meeting 

➢ September 15, 2021 CALAFCO Recruitment Committee Meeting 

➢ October 21, 2021 CALAFCO Board of Directors Emergency Meeting 

➢ October 22, 2021 CALAFCO Legislative Committee Meeting 

➢ November 7, 2021 CALAFCO Virtual Business Meeting 

➢ November 12, 2021 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 

➢ December 3, 2021 CALAFCO Legislative Committee Meeting 

 

Commissioner McGill reported he will serve on the CALAFCO Legislative Committee another year 

and on the Program Committee. 

 

Commissioner Caldwell gave an update on his health challenges. 

 

14. Staff Announcements 
Executive Officer updates: 

• The week of November 15, 2021 will begin 2nd round MSRs covering Mosquito and Vector Control 

and Resource Conservation Districts 

• January 2022 we will release an updated directory of local agencies 

• There will be upcoming an announcement of CALAFCO training sessions 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County 

Draft Meeting Minutes of November 10, 2021   Page 4 

 

 

 

Executive Officer Texeira once again thanked Commissioner Andersen and her Chief of Staff Gayle 

Israel for supporting the LAFCO by hosting our Commission meetings via Zoom meetings 

   

The meeting adjourned at 2:12 p.m. 

 

Final Minutes will be Approved by the Commission December 10, 2021 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The next regular LAFCO meeting is December 10, 2021, at 1:30 pm.  

 

 

By       

Executive Officer  



February 9, 2022 

Agenda Item 7 

RESOLUTION OF THE 

CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

 

RECOGNIZING PAMELA MILLER CALAFCO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

WHEREAS, since 2012 Pamela Miller served as Executive Director of the California 

Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) with dedication and 

distinction; and  
 

WHEREAS, through Pamela Miller’s efforts, CALAFCO has a stronger presence in 

Sacramento and enriched relationships with State Legislators and staff, and other professional 

associations; and   
 

WHEREAS, Pamela Miller was instrumental in guiding in decisions which resulted in 

legislation that benefitted and helped LAFCos achieve their legislative charge; and  
 

WHEREAS, Pamela Miller demonstrated extraordinary leadership and creativity during the 

pandemic by expanding CALAFCO resources to include virtual classes and meetings; and 
 

WHEREAS, under Pamela Miller’s guidance, CALAFCO greatly enhanced and expanded 

its educational programs and services to include courses on fire and EMS, fiscal health indicators 

for cities and districts, cyber & infrastructure security, forming community services districts, and 

courses pertaining to extreme weather, fire and water issues; and  
 

WHEREAS, during Pamela Miller’s tenure, CALAFCO expanded its resources, augmented 

the CALAFCO library, increased associate memberships and better engaged associate members, 

and expanded the CALAFCO website to include 15 archived webinars for member on-demand 

viewing; and 
 

WHEREAS, Pamela Miller was also instrumental in CALAFCO’s receipt of the Platinum 

Seal of Transparency from GuideStar for the organization’s high level of nonprofit transparency; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, Contra Costa LAFCo Commissioners and staff wish Pamela Miller continued 

happiness and success in her future endeavors. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Contra Costa LAFCo Commissioners 

and staff express our heartfelt appreciation to Pamela Miller for her valuable service to all 58 

LAFCos, other local and State government agencies, and the general public. 

 

 

CHAIR, CONTRA COSTA LAFCO 

  
I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by this Commission on the date 

stated. 
 

Dated:   February 9, 2022                               

              Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer 



 

 Page 1 of 2 

February 9, 2022 
Agenda Item 8 RESOLUTION NO.  2022-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 

COMMISSION  AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS UNDER 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e) (ASSEMBLY BILL 361 ) 

 
Recitals 

 
A. On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed the existence of a state of 

emergency in California under the California Emergency Services Act, Gov. Code § 8550 et 
seq. 

B. On March 10, 2020, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors found that due to the 
introduction of COVID-19 in the County, conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the 
safety of persons and property had arisen, commencing on March 3, 2020.  Based on these 
conditions, pursuant to Government Code section 8630, the Board of Supervisors adopted 
Resolution No. 2020/92, proclaiming the existence of a local emergency throughout Contra 
Costa County. 

C. On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which suspended 
the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, Government Code 
section 54950 et seq. (the Brown Act), provided certain requirements were met and 
followed. 

D. On June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which clarified the 
suspension of the teleconferencing rules set forth in the Brown Act and further provided that 
those provisions would remain suspended through September 30, 2021. 

E. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361, which provides that 
under Government Code section 54953(e), a legislative body subject to the Brown Act may 
continue to meet using teleconferencing without complying with the non-emergency 
teleconferencing rules in Government Code section 54953(b)(3) if a proclaimed state of 
emergency exists and state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing. 

F. On February 2, 2022, the Contra Costa County Health Officer issued recommendations for 
safely holding public meetings that include recommended measures to promote social 
distancing.   

G. �$�P�R�Q�J���W�K�H���+�H�D�O�W�K���2�I�I�L�F�H�U�¶�V���U�H�F�R�P�P�H�Q�G�D�W�L�R�Q�V�������������R�Q-line meetings (teleconferencing 
meetings) are strongly recommended as those meetings present the lowest risk of 
transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19; (2) if a local agency 
determines to hold in-person meetings, offering the public the opportunity to attend via a 
call-in option or an internet-based service option is recommended when possible to give 
those at higher risk of an/or higher concern about COVID-19 an alternative to participating 
in person; (3) a written safety protocol should be developed and followed, and it is 
recommended that the protocol require social distancing �± i.e., six feet of separation between 
attendees �± and face masking of all attendees; (4) seating arrangements should allow for 
staff and members of the public to easily maintain at least six-foot distance from one another 
at all practicable times. 

H. Because of the prevalence of the Omicron variant of COVID-19 in the Bay Area, test 
positivity rates and COVID-19 hospitalizations are near historic highs in the County. 

I. In the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused by the spread 
of COVID-19, the Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) intends to 
invoke the provisions of Assembly Bill  361 related to teleconferencing. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission resolves as follows: 

 
1. LAFCO finds that: the state of emergency proclaimed by Governor Newson on March 4, 

2020, is currently in effect; and the Contra Costa County Health Officer has strongly 
recommended that public meetings be held by teleconferencing as those meetings present 
the lowest risk of transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.   
 

2. As authorized by Assembly Bill 361, LAFCO will use teleconferencing for its meetings in 
accordance with the provisions of Government Code section 54953(e).  
 

3. The Executive Officer is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to implement 
the intent and purpose of this resolution, including conducting open and public meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable provisions of 
the Brown Act.   
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 9, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
CHAIR, CONTRA COSTA LAFCO 
 

I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by this Commission on 
the date stated above. 
 
 
Dated:  February 9, 2022        

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer  


	Notice of Intent to Waive Protest Proceedings
	CLOSED SESSION
	Unrepresented employee: Executive Officer
	ADJOURNMENT

	04 - Selection of 2022 LAFCO Chair and Vice Chair
	05 - November 10 2021 DRAFT Meeting Mintues
	07 - RESOLUTION FOR PAMELA MILLER - Executive Director, CALAFCO
	08 - AB 361 - LAFCO Resolution 2022-01



